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HISTORICAL NARRATIVE (continued)
Shipbuilder Sylvanus Smith moved to East Boston in 1854, and worked for others including Samuel Hall. (Nyberg, Summer Suffragists, ch. 7.) By 1862 he was building ships with his own firm. In 1872, he built a house at 76 White Street, next door to Donald McKay’s house. As noted in area form BOS.JK, McKay’s house at 78-80 White Street is a Boston Landmark 1977, NR 1982. Both houses were near shipyards on Border Street. McKay’s original shipyard was just south of White Street, and his shipyard from 1863 to 1869 was farther south, south of Samuel Hall’s yard. (Nyberg, “Shipyards of East Boston.”) In 1870, McKay’s creditors seized his assets including his shipyard. A few years later, McKay sold his house on White Street. (Ujifusa, Barons of the Sea, 334.) About this time, Smith was operating at the former Paul Curtis yards at the foot of White Street. See Supplemental Information below.
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SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION – Shipyards of East Boston

East Boston was once one of America’s most important places for shipbuilding. In the 1840s and 1850s, the principal shipbuilders included Paul Curtis, Samuel Hall, and Donald McKay. McKay pioneered the design of fast clipper ships, and became their most famous builder, from about 1850 to 1869. In addition to these men, Sylvanus Smith became a noted shipbuilder in East Boston.

McKay came from Canada, and his biography has been well documented. The other three shipbuilders came from Boston’s South Shore. Samuel Hall (1800–1870) of Marshfield worked there and in Duxbury and had a shipyard in East Boston by 1847. Paul Curtis (1800-1873) was born in Scituate.
 He built ships at the North River shipyards, and then at Medford by about 1836, where he later partnered with Silvanus Smith. Curtis began building ships in East Boston about 1851. He lived at 402 Meridian Street, near his shipyard. Sylvanus (or Silvanus) Smith (1817–1901) came from Duxbury, later lived in Pembroke, and built ships at the North River and in Medford before moving to East Boston in 1854 to begin building ships there. Curtis and Smith again partnered in shipbuilding in 1865 until Curtis’s death in 1873.

Their ships were legendary. But where, exactly, were their shipyards?

All the significant shipyards were clustered west of Border Street, along its north, from White Street southward. This area was wharfed out after 1830. The yards were across Boston harbor from Charlestown and the Navy Yard. Within this cluster, their places changed from time to time.

Early maps show the Curtis yard at the foot of White Street. McKay's shipyard was just south of the Curtis yard. The Hall yard was farther south, near Central Square, just below the bend in Border Street. An 1851 map shows these yards, along with McKay’s solitary house a few blocks away from the yards, next to a reservoir. (The reservoir site is now occupied by East Boston High School.)
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Hall’s yard was just north of Maverick Street in this detail of Eddy, R. H. (Robert Henry), Noble, John, engineer, and Tappan & Bradford, "Plan of East Boston showing the land and water lots sold and unsold, also all buildings and other improvements" (Boston: Tappan & Bradford's Lith., 1851), Norman B. Leventhal Map & Education Center at Boston Public Library, https://collections.leventhalmap.org/search/commonwealth:9s161f43g.
An 1852 map by Chesbrough shows the Curtis wharf (unlabeled) at the foot of White Street (also unlabeled). It was the widest wharf along this section of waterfront.
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Detail of Chesbrough, Ellis Sylvester, Léonard, Charles, Nicoll, M. W., Boston Engineering Dept., Boston City Council Joint Standing Committee on Boston Harbor, and Tappan & Bradford, "Map of Boston Harbor" (Boston: Tappan & Bradford's Lith., 1852), Norman B. Leventhal Map & Education Center at Boston Public Library, https://collections.leventhalmap.org/search/commonwealth:js956m10r.
This 1852 Chesbrough map is featured in the book Mapping Boston, accompanied by a short discussion of the clipper ships.

Another 1852 map shows the Curtis wharf gone, and the previous wharf between Curtis and McKay as only an outline, called "Timber Dock." Presumably, it was being rebuilt, along with the Curtis wharf. The Curtis wharf would again be the site of yards of Curtis, then McKay (possible), then Smith & Townsend. The map shows McKay's wharf and “D. McKay’s Ship Yard” nearly adjacent to the Timber Dock, but farther south from White Street. It seems to be in the same position as on the 1851 map, just north of Eutaw Street. In addition, the map shows McKay's house on White Street next to the reservoir.
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Detail of McIntyre, H. (Henry), Friend & Aub, and Wagner & M'Guigan, "Map of the city of Boston and immediate neighborhood" (Boston: H. Mc Intyre, 1852), Norman B. Leventhal Map & Education Center at Boston Public Library, https://collections.leventhalmap.org/search/commonwealth:3f4632536.
In 1854, Sylvanus Smith and his family would move to Eutaw Street near McKay’s house.

An 1866 map shows that Curtis’s wharf had been rebuilt at the foot of White Street. (Curtis would later partner with Sylvanus Smith, presumably at this wharf). In 1866, Smith had a yard farther down the shoreline. On the 1866 map, McKay's name does not appear at his old yard, but it seems to appear farther down the shoreline, past Hall's yard. McKay operated there from 1863 to 1869.
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Detail of Crafts, N. Henry., Wightman, H. M., Swett, C. A. (Cyrus A.), and Boston (Mass.) Engineering Dept., "Plan of 
Boston" (Boston: E.P. Dutton & Co., 1866), Norman B. Leventhal Map & Education Center at Boston Public Library, https://collections.leventhalmap.org/search/commonwealth:9s161b622.
However, an 1868 Sanborn insurance map depicts “McKay’s Ship Yd.” adjacent to the north side of “Curtis Ship Yd.” at the foot of White Street. This seems questionable. In any case, creditors soon seized McKay's assets, including his shipyard, in 1870. McKay continued to work for others, including steamship sloops of war for the government. One of these was built at the Atlantic Works shipyard, evidently McKay’s old shipyard just south of Hall’s shipyard. It was still called McKay’s yard in some news reports. Later in the 1870s, McKay sold his house on White Street and moved away from East Boston.
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At the foot of Eagle and White Streets is “McKay’s Ship Yd.” (left) and “Curtis Ship Yd.” (right) as shown in this detail of D. A. Sanborn, Insurance map of Boston: volume 2 (New York: D. A. Sanborn, 1868), plate 79, Norman B. Leventhal Map & Education Center at the Boston Public Library, https://collections.leventhalmap.org/search/commonwealth:6h447013g.
Meanwhile, Sylvanus Smith came to East Boston in 1854 and built ships during the peak years and waning years of the clipper ship era. At first, Smith and his family lived on Eutaw Street near the shipyards. In 1872, he and his family moved a few blocks north to a house he built at 76 White Street, on Eagle Hill. It was next to the house of Donald McKay. Both houses are shown on an excellent 1874 map. The map shows how close they were to their shipyards.
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Detail of 1874 map. Smith & Townsend (lessee) at Curtis Ship Yard at upper center, at foot of White Street; and Smith and McKay houses on White Street at bottom center, next to reservoir (colored green). G. M. Hopkins, Atlas of the County of Suffolk, Massachusetts, vol. 4: including East Boston, City of Chelsea, Revere and Winthrop (Philadelphia: G. M. Hopkins & Co., 1874), plate L, pages 52-53, State Library of Massachusetts, http://hdl.handle.net/2452/205983

 HYPERLINK "http://hdl.handle.net/2452/205983" \t "_blank" .
By the time of the 1874 map, Sylvanus Smith was operating at the former Curtis shipyard at the foot of White Street, next to (or including) where McKay had previously had his shipyard. Smith was then nearing the end of an illustrious career as a shipbuilder of more than 100 vessels. Upon his arrival in East Boston in 1854, he was hired by Samuel Hall and worked his way up to be Hall’s foreman. Then he had his own firms in East Boston, including the following:

•
1862- Silvanus Smith & Company
•
1865- Curtis, Smith & Co., Shipbuilders; then Paul Curtis, Silvanus Smith, Rufus Cushman & Morton Bradford
•
1873-1889 Smith & Townsend

It was here at the former Curtis yard that Smith built and launched such ships as the Centennial (1875) and the Paul Revere (1876).

A glorious 1879 map gives a bird’s-eye view of East Boston, with its shipyards in the foreground. Piers continue to the right. The piers served such businesses as the Cunard passenger ship line that operated between Liverpool and America. Like the 1874 map, the 1879 map shows the Smith & Townsend shipyard (lower left), and the nearby houses of Smith and McKay.
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O.H. Bailey & Co., View of East Boston, Mass. (Boston: O.H. Bailey & Co., 1879), BPL/Digital Commonwealth, https://ark.digitalcommonwealth.org/ark:/50959/3f4634491, and State Library of Massachusetts.
Speaking of Cunard, the line had a special relationship with Boston. Its piers were in East Boston, starting in 1840, evidently always at the southern end. An 1852 map shows them there. In 1901, Cunard had its headquarters building at 126 State Street in Boston. The building still exists, with the Cunard name chiseled in its stone facade.
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Detail of O.H. Bailey 1879 map, showing Smith & Townsend shipyard, lower left, with Smith and McKay houses two blocks above, near reservoir
Returning to shipyards, perhaps the earliest was Samuel Hall’s, founded in 1847. It continued at its same location, south of the bend in Border Street, for a long time. According to area form BOS.RP, which has a more detailed history of the area,

The Boston East lot appears to occupy a large portion of the site of Samuel Hall's original 1847 East Boston Drydock Company works. The standing structures of the Atlantic Boiler Works are located on the site of Donald McKay's second, short-lived, Civil War-era ship yard. Both the Hall and McKay sites were purchased by the Atlantic Boiler Works [engaged in shipbuilding and ship repair] in 1869 and 1902, respectively.

The shipyards of Donald McKay, famed for his clipper ships, are depicted in a number of images. They include a drawing of the 1853 launch of the Great Republic, an etching from 1850-1859, and a great 1855 photo by Southworth & Hawes. A painting, supposedly owned by McKay, shows Boston and the harbor from his shipyard. A bird’s-eye view of Boston from 1866 has a panoramic view of the shipbuilding wharves along Border Street in East Boston.

Fragments from the original ways of the McKay shipyard, and related items, are at the Mariners' Museum and Park in Newport News, Virginia.

The Boston Museum of Science has a diorama showing McKay's shipyard in 1852.
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McKay’s shipyard, July 1852, Boston Museum of Science diorama. Photo by Daderot, public domain, https://commons.wikimedia.org/wiki/File:Museum_of_Science,_Boston,_MA_-_IMG_3197.JPG.
The glories of the clipper ship era are past. However, remains of the shipyards that built them still exist, more or less, under later construction. The above discussion and images summarize the locations of important shipyards of East Boston.
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